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Request for Information (RFI)

On

Outsourced Desktop Management
RSVP Deadline: E-mailed or postmarked by August 28th, 2006 5 p.m. (EST)

RFI Deadline: E-mailed or postmarked by September 15th, 2006 5 p.m. (EST)
Publication Date: November 9th, 2006
I. Introduction

Network Computing’s November 9th, 2006 feature will be devoted to outsourced desktop management providers.

If you would like to participate, please RSVP to the author, Mike DeMaria (mdemaria@nwc.com) by August 28, 2006 and return the completed RFI by September 15, 2006.

A. Purpose

This Request for Information is proprietary to Network Computing and CMP Media, LLC. It is drafted and disseminated for the sole purpose of generating information on outsourced desktop management products for publication in Network Computing on November 9, 2006. Participating vendors must meet the minimum requirements for participation described in Section B and agree that any information returned to Network Computing in response to this RFI will be published in print and electronic form on our Web site, www.networkcomputing.com.

B. Instructions

The following minimum product requirements are necessary to participate in this review of hosted desktop management. Please check all that apply. 

___
Product is available to customers on or after November 9, 2006 and is not in beta form

___
Supports Windows XP Pro

___
Does inventory scanning.

___
Does software distribution.
___
Does software license monitoring.

___
Does patch management.

___
Works with dynamic and unpredictable IP addresses (for remote workers).

If you do not meet all of these criteria, your product does not meet the minimum qualifications for this review. Please notify Mike DeMaria (mdemaria@nwc.com or 315-443-5798) by August 28, 2006 that you do not meet the criteria for participation. Thank you for your consideration.

If you respond to the RFI, please note the dates in Section C to complete the RFI on time for inclusion in our November 9, 2006 issue. We suggest you read through the entire RFI before answering questions. You can reference answers to other questions in the RFI using the section and question number. Please do not reference materials outside the RFI; incorporate them into your answers. This RFI will be the only source used to review your product.

Some questions provide for Yes/No checkbox answers, while some require more detail using an essay format. Essay-type questions may include word-count limits. Any responses submitted beyond the limit may be disqualified.

Please answer all questions--this information is the foundation on which we determine the winning bid and our Editor's Choice Award. If you do not have an answer for a question or it does not apply, please indicate that in the space allotted.  If you do not support the features asked about in the question, you may give a response as to why your product should be selected over a vendor who offers that feature. In such an instance, be sure to clearly indicate that you don’t offer the feature.  If you leave a question blank, we can only assume that your product does not support the proposition.

C. Effective Dates

RFI Issue Date: August 18, 2006

RSVP Deadline: August 28, 2006 by e-mail to Mike DeMaria by 5 p.m. (EST), 

RFI Deadline: September 15, 2006 postmarked or e-mailed by 5 p.m. (EST) 
Publication Date: November 9, 2006

II. Business Overview

To assist with your responses we have developed the following scenario. In your responses to the specific items listed below, please reference the needs outlined below. Also, please read the entire RFI before completing the first response and avoid redundancy wherever possible.

Last Spike Enterprises, a medium sized business with 2200 desktops, is the premiere and largest manufacturer, reseller and distributor of model railroad vegetation and livestock figurines.  The privately held company has experienced a period of explosive growth, doubling the company size in the past year.  This is due to a major push in advertising, as well as hiring additional people in marketing and sales.  The IT staff has not been able to keep up with this growth rate, and existing desktop management models have proven to be insufficient.  Approximately 2000 of their 2500 employees work in the central office.  Not all employees need a dedicated computer.  There are 5 branch offices connected to the central office via business class DSL and IPSec VPN.  Each branch office has 10 employees and 10 desktops.  The remaining 450 workers are mobile or telecommuters, each with a laptop.  Laptops connect to the LAN via a software client IPSec VPN.

Last Spike has a distributed IT staff.  Select workers in individual departments are responsible for their user’s day to day tasks and basic tech support, while a small central group handles IT direction, backbone infrastructure, policy and advanced tech support.  They also maintain the corporate Active Directory domain.  The distributed staff occasionally orders software.  All software purchases must be reported to the central IT department.  The distributed IT staff is responsible for managing their software purchases, and ensuring license compliance. Last Spike is especially worried about software license compliance.  Recently, one of the CEO’s golfing buddies was subjected to an investigation and audit, which spurred approval of the money for this project.

A year ago, Last Spike looked into low cost on-site desktop management products.  This arose out of concern for deploying software in a timelier manner, better control over patch management and monitoring software license compliance.  IT also wants to prevent users from running unauthorized applications. Due to internal differences of opinion, no solution was put in place.  With the recent growth explosion, Last Spike realizes that they must alter their practices.  One concern is that there isn’t enough internal time and talent to support a reliable and large scale desktop management system.  Additional staff may need to be brought on board to support such an endeavor.  Last Spike is forecasting growth to 5000 desktops by the end of 2008, although there is a real possibility that interest in model railroad market could collapse.  Last Spike is conservative with their budgets, and do not want to overspend.

III. Business Essentials

A. Employees: 2500

B. Desktops requiring management: 2200

C. Offices: Central office with 2000 staff members, 5 branch offices with 10 employees each

D. Desktops requiring management in central office: 1700

E. Desktops requiring management in remote offices: 50 (aggregate total)

F. Remote workers: 450 workers are mobile or telecommuters

IV. Technology Goals

A. Deploy software faster

B. Test and deploy patches faster

C. Detect and close vulnerability holes

D. Determine hardware makeup of organization

E. Offer desktop backup and restore if possible

F. Locking down desktops

V. Business Objectives

A. Improve the help desk effectiveness.

B. Plan for future hardware upgrades

C. Avoid downtime through unpatched systems

D. Ensure compliance with software licenses

VI. Review Criteria

The proposed offerings will be graded on the following criteria:

A. General Architecture

1. Provide a diagram or describe the major hardware and software components and how they are interrelated and interconnected.

--> (please answer here)
2. Provide the business case for your proposal based on Last Spike’s goals, objectives, and business environment. You are free to include a competitive analysis. Please limit your answer to 500 words or fewer.

--> (please answer here)

3. Provide a justification for using a hosted desktop management provider instead of going in-house.  Please limit your answer to 300 words or fewer.

--> (please answer here)

B. Platform & Protocol Support
1. Which operating systems are supported for inventory scanning?


___ Windows 98SE

___ Windows NT 4

___ Windows 2000


___ Windows XP


___ Mac OS X


___ Linux


___ Solaris


___ Other (list)

2. Which operating systems are supported for software distribution?


___ Windows 98SE


___ Windows NT 4


___ Windows 2000


___ Windows XP


___ Mac OS X


___ Linux


___ Solaris


___ Other (list)

3. Which operating systems are supported for patch management?


___ Windows 98SE


___ Windows NT 4


___ Windows 2000


___ Windows XP


___ Mac OS X


___ Linux


___ Solaris


___ Other (list)

4. Which operating systems are supported for remote control?


___ Windows 98SE


___ Windows NT 4


___ Windows 2000


___ Windows XP


___ Mac OS X


___ Linux


___ Solaris


___ Other (list)

5. Which Web browsers are supported for web based administration by the IT managers?


___ Internet Explorer,


___ Internet Explorer, Mac OS X


___ Safari, Mac OS X


___ Firefox, Windows


___ Firefox, Mac OS X


___ Firefox, Linux


___ Konquerer, Linux


___ Mozilla, Linux


___ Lynx


___ Opera


___ We do not use web based administration

6. If you do not use web based administration, please describe what you use for administration, and which platforms are supported.

--> (please answer here)

7. How do clients update their information and receive new tasks?  Are they performed on a periodic schedule (pull), can tasks be performed immediately (push), or do you support both? What’s the smallest period of time supported for performing an update? Please limit answer to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

C. Inventory
1. Describe what hardware information can be retrieved.  How detailed are the results?  (Please limit to 250 words).

--> (please answer here)
2. Describe what software information can be retrieved. How detailed are the results?  (Please limit to 250 words).

--> (please answer here)
3. Is registry information collected?  Is an exhaustive list of files collected?  (Please limit to 100 words)

--> (please answer here)

4. Can your product be used to track leased computers?  Can it track non-PC inventory (such as projectors)?  Please limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)
4. Describe how Last Spike will be able to use inventory information to better plan for future hardware and software upgrades.  Please limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)
D. Software Distribution
1. What software can be distributed?  Are you limited to just MSI files?  Can custom installers be created?  Describe the process to create non-MSI installs (snapshot installs).  Do you support pushing down individual files and folders?  Please limit to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)
2. How do you handle dependencies?  Can you specify if an application requires another app before installing?  Please limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)
3. Some installers are very large.  For example, a 100MB service pack deployed to the central office would require 170GB of data transferred.  What methods do you offer to minimize bandwidth usage?  Limit answer to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)
4. How do you support mobile and disconnected users?  Can you do checkpoint restarts?  Will you throttle back a transfer to give priority to other traffic?  Limit answer to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)
E. Software License Management
1. Last Spike is very concerned about software license management.  Describe how your product can be used to keep a company in compliance.  Limit answer to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)

2. What information related to license management can be recorded?  Check all that apply.


___ Software version


___ Serial number/CD Key


___ Purchase order number


___ Requisitioned by


___ Purchase date


___ Price for license


___ License expiration date


___ Maintenance expiration date

3. Do you support per-seat, per-concurrent usage or site licenses?  Please answer Yes or No for each.

--> (please answer here)
4. Do you support downgraded license borrowing (i.e., a license for Office XP will be valid for an install of Office 2000)?

--> (please answer here)

5. What happens when the organization is no longer in compliance?  Describe the reporting and alerting mechanism.  Please limit answer to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)
F. Patch Management
1. Describe the robustness of your patch management solution.  What makes it better than competitors?  Please limit to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)

2. What type of patches do you support?  Windows only?  Office?  Third party?  Custom apps?  By support, in this instance, we mean that you can detect, deploy and report if a patch is not installed.  Please limit to 150 words.

--> (please answer here)

3. Last Spike prefers to deploy patches in test environments, and then roll out to small groups of users.  Describe how your patch deployment model works, and if Last Spike will need to modify their standard procedures.  Limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

4. What other vulnerability assessment capabilities do you offer?  Please limit to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)
G. Help Desk Features
1. Do you offer remote control capabilities?  Do you use your own client, or utilize Microsoft’s RDC?  Limit to 100 words.

--> (please answer here)

2. Do you offer advanced features beyond screen sharing?  For example, chat, instant messaging, remote file send, remote print.  Limit answer to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

3. Do you support remote rebooting?  Y/N

--> (please answer here)
4. Describe how your product can help Last Spike solve help desk calls faster.  Limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

5. Do you offer desktop backup and restore services?  What type of data can be backed up?

--> (please answer here)

H. Administration
1. Do you offer role based administration?  Can administrators, read only, or limited access accounts be created?  Can you limit the abilities of a user to specific groups or individual computers?  Limit answer to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

2. What traditional IT functions do you take over, if any?  What tasks or services will move from Last Spike’s responsibility towards yours?  This can include maintaining the desktop management infrastructure, low level technical support, packaging applications, vulnerability monitoring, testing software deployments and so forth.  Please limit to 750 words.

--> (please answer here)

3. What other professional services do you offer?

--> (please answer here)
I. Security and reliability

1. Last Spike is concerned about third parties reading their sensitive documents. Areas of concern include corporate espionage, leakage of trade secrets, stolen customer information or employee information (social security numbers, human resources correspondences, salary, etc).  What security measures are in place to ensure the safety and secrecy of Last Spike’s documents? (limit response to 750 words).

--> (please answer here)

2. How will your product help Last Spike lock down their desktops?  What is available for limiting which applications a user can run, how do you prevent system settings from being changed, and can you lock USB ports? (limit response to 500 words)

--> (please answer here)

3. Is data stored in an encrypted format on your servers? Y/N

--> (please answer here)

4. Are communications between the clients and your servers encrypted? Y/N

--> (please answer here)

5. Do you have any service level agreements for performance and availability?  Describe your guarantees.  Please limit to 250 words.

--> (please answer here)

6. How is the SLA measured or gauged? (limit response to 250 words)

--> (please answer here)

7. What remedy is made to the customer for not honoring the SLA? (limit response to 250 words)

--> (please answer here)

J. Business Summary (Optional)

You may use this section to summarize the business value that you are providing that you were not able to cover in any of the above sections. You may also use it to make additional recommendations or comments on the RFI. Limit your answer to 500 words.

--> (please answer here)

K. Pricing Summary and Totals

1. Describe the business model used to market and sell the service? Limit your answer to 100 words or less.

--> (please answer here)
2. How long of a contract do you require?  Do you offer month to month, or on a yearly basis?

--> (please answer here)
3. NWC GRADES INCLUDE PRICE SCORES. In order that we can compare apples-to-apples quote the list cost of the service for Last Spike based on the information in section III (2200 users) for one year. All features (such as patch management, remote control, software license monitoring) and service levels (performance guarantees, etc) mentioned in this RFI must be included in the price quote. We recommend itemizing the expenses, but also give a bottom line. Failure to disclose a price will result in disqualification from this review.

--> (please answer here)

VII. Vendor Information

1. How long have you been in business?

--> (please answer here)
2. What is the size of your organization by number of employees?

--> (please answer here)
3. How long has the product been shipping?

--> (please answer here)
4. Are you a public or private company?  What is your stock symbol? 

--> (please answer here)
5. Describe your profitability and financial situation. How can you guarantee to Last Spike that you’ll be in business for the next 5 years. Please remember that this information will be made available to Network Computing readers.

--> (please answer here)
6. List three similar-size enterprises that are currently using the proposed solution.

--> (please answer here)

---

End of RFI.  Thank you for participating in Network Computing’s review of outsourced desktop management providers.

---
